
JANUARY 22, 2013  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS  
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 11:00 a.m. JANUARY 22, 2013 
 
PRESENT: 

Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 
Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner 
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
 

Nancy Parent, Chief Deputy Clerk 
Katy Simon, County Manager 
Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 

Charles Moore, Fire Chief 
 

ABSENT: 
David Humke, Chairman 

 
 The Board convened at 11:12 a.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
13-01F AGENDA ITEM 2 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual 
action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person. Comments are to be 
made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
13-02F AGENDA ITEM 3A 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of the TMFPD-SFPD Joint Board of Fire 
Commissioners Meeting minutes for December 11, 2012.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Jung, which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that 
Agenda Item 3A be approved.   
 
 



PAGE 2  JANUARY 22, 2013 

13-03F AGENDA ITEM 4 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report A) Report and discussion related to fire district 
operations by Chief Charles A. Moore; B) Monthly Statistics; and, C) Washoe 
County Volunteer Fire Fighters Association Report for December 2012.”  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore reviewed the monthly report in the staff report, 
which included administrative updates, operations updates, training updates, and fire 
prevention. He also reviewed the report containing non-audited figures based on data 
extracted from the District’s Incident Reporting System and Washoe County E-Comm 
Dispatch.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked for an explanation of a “Good Intent” call. 
Chief Moore explained that a Good Intent call was a report of a car accident, steam 
mistaken as smoke or when citizens observe an incident they perceive as an emergency; 
however, when crews arrived they found that the emergency was benign. Commissioner 
Hartung noticed that Station 17 in the Spanish Springs area was one of the District’s 
busiest stations. Chief Moore replied the high call volume for that Station was due to the 
automatic aid responses with the City of Sparks, which may be cancelled en route. 
Another leading cause for the numerous responses was due to the nursing homes in that 
area. On average, Chief Moore said the number of Emergency Medical Service (EMS) 
calls, structure or car fires were on par with many of the other stations. He noted that the 
Sun Valley Station received most of the bonafide emergency calls. Commissioner 
Hartung requested the number of EMS calls the District actually attended to in each of 
the jurisdictions. Chief Moore acknowledged that would be completed. He commented 
that staff was reviewing an auxiliary program for the next budget cycle, which would 
utilize volunteer fire fighters and place them as the fourth person on an engine.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked what the threshold would be for a Station to 
receive an additional piece of equipment. Chief Moore explained there were two issues 
that would result in a Station receiving an additional piece of equipment: total call 
volume for that particular engine company; and, simultaneous calls. Commissioner 
Hartung also requested the data for simultaneous calls.  
 
  Commissioner Jung stated that the Administrative Update noted the 
District was short 13 positions. She asked if those positions were considered when a 
requirement or condition could be that the hired employee would also be a paramedic in 
order to assist the response team in the outlying areas. Chief Moore stated that had been 
considered and agreed there were opportunities for the District to provide better medical 
care in some of the outlying areas. Commissioner Jung asked how that could become a 
policy. Katy Simon, County Manager, replied that would be by Board direction. She 
indicated there was paramedic coverage in the Sierra Fire portion of the District and felt 
the Chief preferred to come before the Board with a budget analysis and a unit of service 
analysis. 
 



JANUARY 22, 2013  PAGE 3 

 In future reports, Vice Chairperson Weber requested the Commission’s 
Districts be noted when structure fires were listed. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if the response times for the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA) in the outlying areas could be viewed 
in order to make a comparison when the EMS study was concluded. Chief Moore did not 
think that could be done, but the District was attempting to track their own arrival and 
patient contact and, if REMSA was simultaneously on the scene, then that could be 
tracked. It was also noted in the dispatch records when REMSA arrived and made patient 
contact.  Due to the different locations for dispatch and the different systems that were 
being used that data could only be tracked manually.   
 
 Vice Chairperson Weber noticed that the Gerlach Volunteer Fire 
Department continued to be on the list for not turning in a Volunteer Report. She asked if 
the Volunteer Chief could be contacted to attempt to reach a solution.  
 
 Commissioner Jung inquired on the data that covered mutual aid response 
given, but noted there was no data for mutual aid received. Chief Moore stated that 
should have been included in the report and apologized for the oversight. Division Chief 
Tim Leighton indicated that the only mutual aid the District received was from the Sparks 
Fire Department and was for the exchange zone between the two agencies in sections of 
the Spanish Springs area. He said that was difficult to track because Engine 17 and the 
Sparks Fire Department dispatched together; however, 99 percent of the time one of those 
resources would be cancelled, which did not result in an automatic or mutual aid response 
and were not tracked. 
 
 Chief Moore conducted a PowerPoint presentation on the six month recap 
of the District, which was placed on file with the Clerk. The presentation included: the 
total number of incidents; incident types; wildland, structure and other fires; fire timeline 
for the Thunderbolt Drive fire; the opening of the Arrowcreek Fire Station; the dedication 
of the Hidden Valley Fire Station; the Lyon Fire; the Ironwood Fire; and, the White Pine 
Fire. Chief Moore showed a video that demonstrated the devastation from a fire in a 
garage structure that was packed floor to ceiling with boxes.   
 
 Commissioner Hartung commented if there was a change in the County 
Code to require fire suppression, he asked if that would require a change in the existing 
infrastructure to accommodate the need for increased flows. Chief Moore replied not for 
the areas that had a developed water supply. He explained that rural properties made 
those types of systems expensive. He said it would be determined if there was a specific 
threshold in the total square footage where that would be done.  
 
 Commissioner Jung questioned if “shake roofs” had ever been considered 
to be banned, and she felt that needed to be part of the conversation for fire suppression. 
She requested staff explore if any grant programs were available to replace some of the 
shake roofs.  



PAGE 4  JANUARY 22, 2013 

 Commissioner Berkbigler asked when the first draft of the regulations 
could be expected. Chief Moore replied those should be available in April.      
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
13-04F AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible approval of one job reclassification 
request for the Fire Prevention Specialist Position with an increase of $10,486 per 
year including salary and benefits.”  
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore explained when the department was first 
contemplated, the salary range was established for the Fire Prevention Specialist; 
however, that position had gone unfilled since July 1, 2012. That position was now being 
advertised and a regional parity had been prepared, which discovered the salary being 
offered was less than what other jurisdictions were offering. He noted this was a critical 
position and the person hired would need the requisite skills and experience in order to 
assist the Fire Marshal. The recommendation was to base the salary which honored the 
skills, ability and certifications this position needed. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 5 be approved.   
 
13-05F AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Five 
Year Buy Out of Workers’ Compensation Claims for Fiscal Year 07-08 in the 
Amount of $156,275.27 per the Reno-TMFPD Interlocal Agreement.”  
 
 Mary Walker, District Financial Consultant, explained that this approval 
would pay the City of Reno $156,275.27 for Workers’ Compensation claims from Fiscal 
Year 2007/08. She explained that workers’ compensation liability, as well as retiree 
health liability in the Interlocal Agreement with the City and the District, superseded the 
termination of the contract because of the on-going liabilities. By buying out the FY 
2007/08 claims, the District would have no further liability for any workers’ 
compensation claims for that year except for future heart and lung claims, which were 
incurred, but not reported by June 30, 2012. Ms. Walker indicated there were four more 
years of workers’ compensation buy-outs.   
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if any funds would be set aside for the 
upcoming buy-outs. Ms. Walker explained that those were 100 percent funded and came 
from the Workers’ Compensation Fund. 
 



JANUARY 22, 2013  PAGE 5 

 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that 
Agenda Item 6 be approved.   
 
13-06F AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible approval of an Interlocal Agreement 
between the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office (WCSO) and the Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District (TMFPD) and the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection 
District for the provision, when requested, of a helicopter or other aircraft and 
personnel; and approve reimbursement for services rendered throughout the year 
by the WCSO; and accept the advance funding for the availability during the fire 
season from the TMFPD [$65,000.00] and from the North Lake Tahoe Fire 
Protection District [$10,000.00]; and if approved, authorize Finance Division to 
make the necessary budget adjustments.” 
 
 In response to a question posed by Commissioner Hartung concerning 
liabilities, Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel, replied that generally speaking public entities 
enjoyed immunity from prosecution under the State law for ordinary types of torts up to a 
certain amount. Since that was enjoyed equally by all the local governments, in a 
situation where there were local governments such as fire districts joining together, all of 
them would retain their immunity. He said it was common in these arrangements for each 
of the entities to indemnify themselves against certain types of liabilities.     
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 7 be approved and authorized. The Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto 
and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
13-07F AGENDA ITEM 8 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation for consideration and possible approval of a 
Contract Agreement for certain design and consultant services and preparation of 
plans and specifications for the Mogul Fire Station, between Truckee Meadows Fire 
Protection District and Tate Snyder Kimsey, Architects in the amount of $172,300.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore stated that the Standards of Cover determined 
there were response time issues within the upper portions of the Caughlin Ranch area. He 
noted the existing Verdi Station across from Boomtown was in a dilapidated condition. 
He said that building needed to be replaced and the recommendation was for it to be 
replaced where the Standard of Cover could be reached for Verdi and Caughlin Ranch. 
After much due diligence, this five-acre site was located and noted that zoning approval 



PAGE 6  JANUARY 22, 2013 

had been received from the City of Reno. He said the next step would be a Special Use 
Permit. 
  
 Vice Chairperson Weber stated previously it had been mentioned to bring 
someone in to remove the structure and asked if that had been considered. Chief Moore 
replied two citizens had contacted Public Works about taking and removing the structure, 
but he did not know the outcome of those discussions.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked why an architect was needed when the 
proposed building would be a pre-engineered metal building. Chief Moore explained that 
the architect was needed because of the topography, the design of the residential portion 
of the station, and to ensure the size of the bays were appropriate. It required less 
engineering, but there were many site concerns that had to be addressed. Commissioner 
Hartung asked if Tate Snyder Kimsey, Architects, were a local firm. Chief Moore 
confirmed they had an office in the City of Reno.   
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that 
Agenda Item 8 be approved. 
   
13-08F AGENDA ITEM 9  
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Manager’s Announcements, requests for 
information and identification of topics for future agendas. (No discussion among 
Commissioners or action will take place on this item.)” 
 
 There were no Board member comments. 
 
13-09F AGENDA ITEM 10 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual 
action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person. Comments are to be 
made to the District as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



JANUARY 22, 2013  PAGE 7 

 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
12:19 p.m. There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting 
was adjourned.  
 
 
 
  _________________________ 
  DAVID E. HUMKE, Chairman 
  Truckee Meadows Fire 
  Protection District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
AMY HARVEY, Washoe County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: 
Stacy Gonzales, Deputy County Clerk  
 


























	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	13-01F AGENDA ITEM 2
	13-02F AGENDA ITEM 3A
	13-03F AGENDA ITEM 4
	13-04F AGENDA ITEM 5
	13-05F AGENDA ITEM 6
	13-06F AGENDA ITEM 7
	13-07F AGENDA ITEM 8
	13-08F AGENDA ITEM 9
	13-09F AGENDA ITEM 10
	Stacy Gonzales, Deputy County Clerk



